EXECUTIVE CABINET
THURSDAY, 16TH JANUARY 2020, 6.30 PM
COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, CHORLEY
AGENDA
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
1

MINUTES OF MEETING THURSDAY, 14 NOVEMBER 2019 OF
EXECUTIVE CABINET

2

DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS

(Pages 5 - 10)

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest
in respect of matters contained in this agenda.
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do,
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may
remain in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave
immediately. In either case you must not seek to improperly influence a
decision on the matter.
3

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask a
question(s) on an item(s) on the agenda will have three minutes to put their
question(s) to the respective Executive Member(s). Each member of the
public will be allowed to ask one short supplementary question.

ITEM OF DEPUTY EXECUTIVE LEADER AND EXECUTIVE MEMBER
(RESOURCES) (INTRODUCED BY COUNCILLOR PETER WILSON)
4

DRAFT BUDGET 2020/21 AND SUMMARY POSITION OVER THE
MEDIUM TERM

(Pages 11 - 30)

To consider and receive the report of the Chief Finance Officer.
5

REVIEW OF FEES & CHARGES

(Pages 31 - 36)

To consider and receive the report of the Chief Finance Officer.
6

STRAWBERRY FIELDS DIGITAL OFFICE HUB - GRANT OF
LEASES

(Pages 37 - 40)

To consider and receive the report of the Director (Commercial Services).

Meeting contact Philippa Braithwaite on 01257 515034 or email philippa.braithwaite@chorley.gov.uk

ITEM OF EXECUTIVE MEMBER (EARLY INTERVENTION) (INTRODUCED
BY COUNCILLOR BEV MURRAY)
7

COMMUNITY RESILIENCE

(Pages 41 - 64)

To consider and receive the report of the Director (Early Intervention and
Support).
8

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS
To consider the exclusion of the press and public for the following items of
business on the ground that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972.
By Virtue of Paragraph 3: Information relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)
Condition:
Information is not exempt if it is required to be registered underThe Companies Act 1985
The Friendly Societies Act 1974
The Friendly Societies Act 1992
The Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978
The Building Societies Act 1986 (recorded in the public file of any building
society, within the meaning of the Act)
The Charities Act 1993
Information is exempt to the extent that, in all the circumstances of the case,
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
Information is not exempt if it relates to proposed development for which the
local planning authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to
Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992(a).

ITEM OF EXECUTIVE LEADER AND EXECUTIVE MEMBER (ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC SERVICE REFORM) (INTRODUCED BY
COUNCILLOR ALISTAIR BRADLEY)
9

WHITTLE GP SURGERY

(Pages 65 - 70)

To consider and receive the report of the Director (Commercial Services).

ITEM OF DEPUTY EXECUTIVE LEADER AND EXECUTIVE MEMBER
(RESOURCES) (INTRODUCED BY COUNCILLOR PETER WILSON)
10

STRAWBERRY FIELDS DIGITAL OFFICE HUB - GRANT OF A
LEASE - OFFICE 41, 42 & 43
To consider and receive the report of the Director (Commercial Services).

(Pages 71 - 74)

ITEM OF EXECUTIVE MEMBER (HOMES AND HOUSING) (INTRODUCED
BY COUNCILLOR GRAHAM DUNN)
11

LCC SERVICE CHANGES AFFECTING HOME IMPROVEMENT
AGENCY SERVICE DELIVERY

(Pages 75 - 82)

To consider and receive the report of the Director (Early Intervention and
Support).
12

ANY URGENT BUSINESS PREVIOUSLY AGREED WITH THE CHAIR

GARY HALL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Executive Cabinet Councillor Alistair Bradley (Chair),
Councillor Peter Wilson (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Beverley Murray, Graham Dunn,
Alistair Morwood and Adrian Lowe.

If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk
To view the procedure for public questions/ speaking click here
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/documents/s67429/Appendix%203%20Standing%20Ord
ers%20Aug%2016.pdf and scroll to page 48
To view the procedure for “call-in” of Executive Decisions click here
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=117&Year=0

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 5

Agenda Item 1

MINUTES OF

EXECUTIVE CABINET

MEETING DATE

Thursday, 14 November 2019

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Councillor
Alistair Bradley
(Chair),
Councillor
Peter Wilson
(Vice-Chair)
and
Councillors
Beverley Murray, Graham Dunn, Alistair Morwood and
Adrian Lowe

OFFICERS:

Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Mark Lester (Director
(Business, Economic and Growth)), Chris Moister
(Head of Legal, Democratic & HR Services),
Philippa Braithwaite (Democratic and Member Services
Officer),
Rebecca Aziz-Brook
(Transformation
Programme Coordinator), Andrew Daniels (Service
Lead - Communications and Visitor Economy) and
Rachel Salter (Strategic Development Officer)

OTHER MEMBERS:

Councillors Aaron Beaver, Eric Bell,
Gordon France,
Margaret France,
Yvonne Hargreaves and Steve Holgate

19.EC.147

Mark Clifford,
Tom Gray,

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 17 October 2019 of Executive Cabinet

Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 17 October
2019 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader.
19.EC.148

Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest.
19.EC.149

Public Questions

There were no public questions.
19.EC.150

Cowling Farm

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public
Service Reform), presented the report of the Director (Business Development and
Growth) which provides an update on the current progress of delivering an
employment and gypsy and traveller (G & T) site at Cowling Farm, and presents the
options available to deliver the G & T allocation.
Members noted the G & T family’s comments regarding proximity to employment and
residential sites and the Leader advised that Homes England had now submitted an
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 14 November 2019

Agenda Page 6

Agenda Item 1

application for their site rather than continuing to work collaboratively with the Council.
Members expressed their disappointment and noted that the Leader had written to
Homes England to express the Council’s concerns. It was agreed that waiting for a
response before deciding on which option to pursue would be preferable, and in the
meantime both options 1 and 2 should be investigated further.
Decision:
1. That options 1 and 2 be considered further by officers with greater detail to be
provided to Members at another meeting.
2. To request the Leader to urge Homes England to respond to his recent letter.
3. To note that Officers will continue to look at the feasibility of delivering
residential and a gypsy and traveller (G & T) allocation on the Chorley land
rather than employment and a G & T allocation.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To progress the delivery of the G & T site and to progress the delivery of the wider site
with a use that is financially viable.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
1. To continue to progress with the employment development has been rejected
as it is unviable.
2. Delivery of the G & T site with the wider site development has been rejected as
it will not deliver the G & T allocation within the required timescales.
19.EC.151

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2019/20 Report 2

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the
Chief Finance Officer which sets out the provisional revenue and capital outturn
figures for the Council as compared against the budgets and efficiency savings targets
set for the financial year 2019/20.
Members noted that the forecast of capital expenditure in 2019/20 was £53.691m and
the forecast level of balances at 31 March 2020 will be £4m. Members discussed the
reserves in place for expanding shared services and noted that the 2019/20 in year
underspends would be used to fund Chorley Council’s share of the forecast costs.
Decision:
1. Note the full year forecast position for the 2019/20 revenue budget and capital
investment programme.
2. Note the forecast position on the Council's reserves.
3. Request Council note the capital programme to be delivered in 2019/20 to
2021/22 and to approve the adjustments outlined in the report.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To ensure the Council’s budgetary targets are achieved.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None.
19.EC.152

Quarter 2 Performance Report 2019/20

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the
Director (Policy & Governance) which sets out the performance against the delivery of
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 14 November 2019

Agenda Page 7

Agenda Item 1

the Corporate Strategy and key performance indicators during the second quarter of
2019/20, 1 July to 30 September 2019.
Overall, performance of key projects is excellent, with 11 (92%) of the projects now
rated as green or complete and one (8%) project currently rated as amber with the
action plan for this project contained within this report. Performance of the Corporate
Strategy indicators and key service delivery measures is also excellent with 100% of
Corporate Strategy measures and 88% of key service delivery measures performing
on or above target or within the 5% threshold. Those indicators performing below
target, including bin collections, have action plans outlined with measures to improve
performance.
In addition, this quarter the 2019 Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) update was
released by the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government. The overall
message for Chorley is positive with the borough now less deprived than it was in
2015 and Members noted the evidence behind these figures was being used to
understand and address the issues.
Decision:
To note the report.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Council’s performance in
delivering the Corporate Strategy.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None.
19.EC.153

Exclusion of the Public and Press

Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972.
19.EC.154

Tatton Project

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public
Service Reform), presented the confidential report of the Director (Business,
Development & Growth) which present the feasibility study and masterplan options for
the demolition of the former bus depot off Eaves Lane and Tatton community centre to
allow the development of a new community centre, GP surgery and pharmacy and
residential assisted living apartments.
Decision:
1. To approve masterplan Option D for the Tatton Development.
2. To approve the progression of the further works identified in the report
maintaining the professional services of the appointed consultant to progress
the next stage of feasibility works.
3. To acknowledge that the further works will be funded through the remaining
One Public Estate Funding, with any deficit being funded through the income
generation reserve.
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 14 November 2019

Agenda Page 8

Agenda Item 1

Reasons for Recommendation(s):
1. Following a review of the masterplan options, Officers have brought forward
masterplan option D as the recommended scheme for the Tatton development.
2. Option D provides an Assisted Living Unit containing 59 apartments and 12
residential properties, GP Surgery and Pharmacy, new Community Centre and
improvements to the Tatton recreation ground.
3. The proposal promotes the use of space by combining the Assisted Living Unit
with both the GP Surgery/Pharmacy and Community Centre into the same
extended footprint.
4. The proposal provides 12 low-rise residential properties to the northern end of
the site, which will provide natural surveillance for the park area.
5. The proposal provides improvements to recreational facilities for the local
residents.
6. The proposal will reduce anti-social behaviour within the area by developing a
scheme that compliments the surrounding area. The assisted living will offer
24hr surveillance to the park and community centre.
7. Maintaining the current consultant team will allow continuity of the design
works.
8. The consultant team to date have provided a value for money high quality
service.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
1. Masterplan Option A – rejected as the community centre and GP surgery
separated from the assisted living could be open to ongoing vandalism.
2. Masterplan Option B – rejected as the community centre separated from the
assisted living and GP Surgery could be open to ongoing vandalism. The
proposed residential properties take too much of the park/green space.
3. Do nothing – rejected as this will not deliver the councils corporate objectives.
19.EC.155

Review of Management Accountancy Service

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential
report of the Director (Policy & Governance) which briefs Members on the outcome of
the review of, and amendments to, the existing shared services for finance between
South Ribble Borough Council and Chorley Borough Council.
Decision:
1. To note the consultation responses given in Appendix 1.
2. To note the changes to the structure given in original report that was approved
at Full Council on 25 October 2019. These changes address some of the issues
outlined in the consultation responses.
3. To approve the final structure for a Shared Management Accountants team.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
A review of shared services, operational structures and staff development will ensure
that both councils are supported by a finance team that has the appropriate tools to
deliver a best practice service in the most efficient and effective manner.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None.

Executive Cabinet Thursday, 14 November 2019

Agenda Page 9
19.EC.156

Agenda Item 1

Review of Financial Systems and Exchequer Service

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential
report of the Director (Policy & Governance) which briefs Members on the review of,
and amendments to, the existing shared services for finance between South Ribble
Borough Council and Chorley Borough Council.
Decision:
To approve the changes to the Financial Systems and Exchequer Services outlined in
the report that were approved by Shared Services Joint Committee on 9 September
and by Full Council at both Chorley and South Ribble Councils in September 2019. No
further changes have been made to the report since this approval was given.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
A review of shared services, operational structures and staff development will ensure
that both councils are supported by a finance team that has the appropriate tools to
deliver a best practice service in the most efficient and effective manner.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None.
19.EC.157

Any urgent business previously agreed with the Chair

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public
Service Reform), briefed Members on recent staffing appointments, and no objections
were raised.

Chair

Executive Cabinet Thursday, 14 November 2019

Date

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 11

Agenda Item 4

Report of

Meeting

Date

Chief Finance Officer
(Introduced by the Executive
Member for Resources)

Executive Cabinet

16 January 2020

2020/21 DRAFT BUDGET AND SUMMARY BUDGET POSITION
OVER THE MEDIUM TERM
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
1.

To set out the budget position for 2020/21 including the forecast for the following 2 years to
2022/23 and also present the relevant proposals in respect of:
• The use of forecast resources identified in 2020/21
• Budget consultation

RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.

That Members agree the contents of this report in order to start the budget consultation
process and note the following proposed budget items, in particular:
•
•
•

No proposed increase in council tax for 2020/21 and no proposed cuts to
services
The forecast balanced budget for 2020/21 and the forecast budget position in
2021/22 and 2022/23
The changes to the capital programme 2020/21 to 2022/23

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT
3.

The budget forecasts over the next 3 years have been updated to take account of the following:
•
•

•
•
4.

Due to the investments made by the Council and the efficiencies achieved, there
is no proposed increase in council tax in 2020/21
There is no proposed increase in council tax in 2021/22 or 2022/23, this will be
revisited every year and will be dependent upon the outcome of the Government
announcements regarding the Fair Funding Review and Business Rates
Retention.
Continued investment of approximately £1m that will deliver corporate strategy
priorities
Strategies to reduce the budget deficit in the medium term

Consultation on the proposed budget for 2020/21 will commence following approval of the
proposals by Executive Cabinet. The consultation will invite responses from residents,
partners, parish groups and other stakeholders through a variety of methods including a short
survey (available both in hard copy and online). Results will be analysed and published in
February for consideration as part of budget finalisation

Agenda Item 4

Agenda Page 12

FUNDING
Spending Round 2019 and Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement
5.

2019-20 was due to be the final year of the Government’s four-year Settlement, however
following the Spending Round 2019, councils will receive a further one-year Settlement as the
planned changes from the Fair Funding Review and 75% Business Rates retention have been
delayed by at least one year until April 2021 at the earliest. Budget assumptions have been
made based on the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement that was announced on
24 December 2019.

Business Rates
6.

Chorley Council benefited in 2019/20 from being a member of the Lancashire 75% business
rates pilot. The spending round 2019 announced that all 75% pilots will be disbanded. The
budget assumes that in 2020/21 the council will revert to membership of the Lancashire
business rates pool as per the guidance from Government.

7.

Forecasting levels of business rates beyond 2020/21 remains complicated due to uncertainty
regarding the quantum of business rates that will remain when the system is reset. The date
of this reset is still uncertain, this budget assumes it will take place on April 2021. The level of
business rates retained by Chorley Council under the new system will also depend on the
outcome of the fair funding review. This review will set new baseline funding allocations for all
Local Authorities and aims to simplify the existing system and provide an up to date
assessment of Authorities relative needs and resources. Early consultations have taken place
by MHCLG, but there is insufficient information to make informed estimates to date.

New Homes Bonus
8.

The spending review announced a gradual reduction and ultimate removal of New Homes
Bonus. Government proposals are for allocations to reduce as follows:
• 2020/21 – 4 year allocation - for Chorley Council approximately £2.3m
• 2021/22 – 2 year allocation - for Chorley Council approximately £1.1m
• 2022/23 – 1 year allocation - for Chorley Council approximately £550k

Council Tax
9.

The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement announced a council tax referendum
principle of up to 3% in 2019/20. No announcement has been made regarding future years.

10.

Chorley borough has experienced expansion of housing over the past few years.
2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21
Estimate

New Band D equivalent
dwellings brought in base

1,259

677

751

680

520

434

Growth (year-on-year)

3.8%

2.0%

2.1%

1.89%

1.42%

1.20%

£223k

£120k

£133k

£123k

£97k

£83k

Additional council tax
income to CBC each year
11.

The council expects a gradual slowdown in house building over the coming three years
however there are still sites coming forward. An average 1.5% expansion of the base is
forecast in 2021/22 onwards.

Agenda Item 4

Agenda Page 13

Major Sources of Council Funding
20
18
1.40
16

1.01

0.73
0.93

4.46

4.01

14

2.79
2.35

2.99

£ million

12

1.12

0.55

Revenue Support Grant
Income from LCC

10
8

4.38

4.38

4.39

5.02

4.42

3.94

3.94

New Homes Bonus
Retained Business Rates
Council Tax

6
4
6.24

6.50

6.82

7.13

7.19

7.29

7.40

16/17

17/18

18/19

19/20

20/21

21/22

22/23

2
0

12.

The chart above outlines the forecast level of funding across the next three years in
comparison to previous allocations. Retained business rates are forecast to reduce in 21/22
when the Fair Funding Review and reset are forecast to be implemented. This is a cautious
but necessary assumption given the uncertainty surrounding the new system.

Agenda Page 14

Agenda Item 4

EXPENDITURE
Pay Award
13.

An average 2% pay increase per year has been assumed for 2020/21 to 2022/23. However,
Unions are strongly supporting a 10 per cent pay increase and a £10 minimum hourly rate
claim for local government workers in England, Wales and Northern Ireland for the year starting
April 2020. Every 1% increase in pay results in over £100k of additional expenditure to Chorley
Council.

14.

There has been a recent announcement from Government that the national living wage will
increase by 6.2% in 2020/21. This will not affect Chorley Council’s pay bands for 2020/21 as
the council pays above this level already.

Pensions
15.

As part of a triennial pension review the Lancashire County Pension Fund announced an
increase in employer pension contributions for 2020/21 to 2022/23 to meet the future costs of
the scheme. The contributions have increased from 14.4% to 16.4% resulting in an increase
in the council’s contribution. This is lower than the 17.1% assumed in the previous year’s
budget.

16.

The Lancashire County Pension Fund has outperformed most local authority pension funds
over the past 3 years. Looking forward the pension fund has provided figures that forecast
Chorley Council’s contribution to the prior year deficit will reduce by approximately £500k,
reducing the council’s budgeted contributions by over £1.5m over the next three years.

Brexit
17.

Concerns remain about the impact of the United Kingdom’s withdrawal from the European
Union (BREXIT). Much speculation continues around the likely financial effects of this but it is
clear that continued uncertainty has presented significant issues across the economy and the
stock market. The potential risks to the Council include changes to interest rates and inflation,
a slowdown in the local economy affecting rental and property values and income from retained
business rates. The council set aside a reserve of £300k to mitigate the impact that the UK
leaving the EU could have on local businesses and Corporate Priorities. These risks will be
closely monitored and reported throughout the period of the MTFS.

Agenda Item 4

Agenda Page 15

BUDGET DEFICIT
18.

The council’s gross budget deficit is summarised in table 1 and is based upon the reductions
in funding described above and the following key budget assumptions. It should be noted that
some of the assumptions are still potentially subject to change that may impact positively or
negatively on the budget.
Table 1: Cumulative Gross Budget Deficit as at January 2020
2020/21
£m

hllj
Gross Budget Deficit
19.

0.349

2022/23
£m

2.392

3.285

All deficits and savings identified in the table 1 and in the remainder of this report are
cumulative. For example the deficit of £3.285m in 2022/23 identified above is the result of a
£2.392m deficit in 2021/22 and further budget pressures of £0.893m identified for 2022/223.

Key Assumptions

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

Growth in Council Tax
Base

1.20%

1.50%

1.50%

Growth in Retained Business Rates

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

New Homes Bonus Baseline Adjustment

0.40%

0.40%

0.40%

£2.346m

£1.125m

£0.550m

16.40%

16.40%

16.40%

Income from LCC

£0.096m

£0.096m

£0.096m

Pension Fund Deficit Recovery

£0.441m

£0.458m

£0.476m

2.00%

2.00%

2.00%

Total Forecast New Homes Bonus
Future Service Pension
Rate

Pay Award
20.

2021/22
£m

A detailed breakdown of the 3 year budget including the gross budget deficit is provided in
Appendix 1. Included in this appendix are the revenue budget implications regarding the
Council’s large capital projects, as with other assumptions it should be noted that the profile of
expenditure and income is potentially subject to change. Risks surrounding these budget
assumptions will be managed using general and earmarked reserves as outlined at the end of
this report.

Agenda Item 4

Agenda Page 16

BALANCING THE BUDGET IN 2020/21
21.

Funding to Chorley Council has fallen from over £17m in 2016/17 to a forecast figure of under
£12m by 2022/23. During this period the council continued to experience inflationary increases
in staff and non-staff budgets. However, the council has been ambitious in its approach to
meeting the budget deficit through generating efficiency savings and additional income.

22.

The council has been successful in keeping its costs down whilst continuing to provide the high
quality services expected from its residents. The council achieves this by continually reviewing
its budgets and contracts. Over £1m saving was achieved through the tender of the waste
contract in 2019/20 and further savings are forecast for the tender of its leisure centre
management contract. Staff structures are reviewed to ensure the council remains efficient in
the delivery of the corporate priorities throughout the borough. Staffing efficiencies of over £1m
have been achieved since 2014/15 with further savings expected through the council’s
commitment to explore and invest in alternative delivery models, including sharing more
services with South Ribble Borough Council.

23.

The council will continue to invest within Chorley borough to generate income and therefore
make the council less reliant on the increasingly uncertain funding from Government. It is an
exciting time for the council and its residents as several key investment projects are complete
and are now open. These investments not only provide income to the council but also provide
key services to residents and promote local jobs and businesses.
Table 2: Balancing the Budget in 2020/21
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m
£m
£m

hllj
Gross Budget Deficit

0.349

2.392

3.285

(0.115)

(0.201)

(0.201)

Market Walk Extension Net Income

(0.250)

(0.280)

(0.280)

Primrose Retirement Net Income

(0.084)

(0.104)

(0.111)

0.000

(0.150)

(0.150)

(0.450)

(0.450)

(0.450)

0.450

0.000

0.000

(0.100)

1.206

2.093

Efficiency Savings
Shared Services
Income Generation

Strawberry Fields Net Income
Logistics House Net Income
Create TVS Income Reserve

Net Deficit/(Available Resources)

Agenda Page 17

Agenda Item 4

24.

On 17 September 2019 Full Council approved the first phase of proposals to extend shared
services with South Ribble Borough Council. This established seven shared senior posts with
six of these posts now recruited to. In April 2020 phase one will be developed further with more
efficiencies expected, the expected savings to Chorley Council from phase one are included
in table 2. Both councils will begin developing further joint strategies through a shared board
and develop a business case for the second phase of shared services.

25.

The £15m extension to Market Walk Shopping Centre opened its doors in November when
M&S Foods began trading in the town centre. The new Reel cinema opened in December as
well as the Escape adventure golf and tenpin bowling and a Loungers restaurant will open in
January. These agreed tenancies represent 75% of total floor space and approximately £200k
of net income to the council. The council is negotiating with other potential tenants with the
expectation that further units become occupied after the new year. A prudent estimate of the
net income to the council from a fully occupied site is £280k per annum.

26.

The Primrose Retirement Village opened its doors to residents in October 2019 and is
already approaching full occupancy. This Corporate Strategy project will allow people to live
independently whilst receiving the care and support needed to enjoy later life. A prudent
estimate of the net income receivable by the council has been included in the budget. These
estimates will be revisited as occupancy levels and running costs are better understood.

27.

Chorley Council’s £8.4m advanced Digital Office Park offers 54,000 sq ft of state-of-the-art
office space providing hundreds of high value jobs. There has been a lot of interest in the
building with offices and hot desks now being snapped up by small and medium sized
enterprises. Due to delays in the construction of a link road on an adjacent site, the occupancy
levels are not yet as high as originally budgeted. As such a prudent break-even position is
assumed in 2020/21 with £150k net income to the council in 2021/22 onwards.

28.

On 23 July 2019 Full Council approved the £33m purchase of the Logisitcs House site in
Buckshaw. The council will lease the building back to the current tenant with an expected net
income, after borrowing costs, of £450k rising to £900k towards the end of the lease term. The
council will set aside the initial £450k in 2020/21 to create an income equalisation reserve that
will be used to manage any budget implications of the site becoming vacant. However, the
current tenant and its parent company have very strong financial standing and this risk of
default is therefore deemed to be very low.

Investing in Corporate Priorities
In 2019/20 the council allocated over £1m of revenue investment to deliver corporate strategy priorities through a
programme of activities designed to meet the fundamental needs of local residents, like health, housing and jobs, while
continuing to get Chorley in the best social and economic position of the future.

A strong local economy

£50,000
ongoing
investment
in
neighbourhood projects identified as
priorities by local residents.

£125,000 to deliver an ambitious events
programme including the Flower Show,
Chorley Live and Christmas attractions
attracting more than 69,000 people

£60,000 to fund resource for digital
inclusion to ensure that residents from
across the borough are enabled to
access services online

Clean, safe and healthy homes
and communities

quality diversionary and wellbeing
activities for young people in Chorley
£50,000 to improve street cleaning and
litter collections. Resident dissatisfaction
was 12.79% for September 2019
compared to a target of 20%.

individuals, achieving better wellbeing
outcomes
£70,000 to run and improve key
routes in the borough to mitigate
impact of county wide cuts, ensuring
residents can access all areas of
borough

bus
the
that
the

Agenda Item 4

Clean,
and healthy
homes
£100,000safe
to support
the ongoing
work of
the
Youth
Zone
to
continue
to
deliver
high
and communities

An ambitious council that does
more to meet the needs of
An ambitious council that does
residents and the local area
more to meet the needs of
residents
theover
local
area
£60,000 to and
support
230
vulnerable

Agenda Page 18

Involving residents in improving
their local area and equality of
access for all

Capital Investment
Involving residents in improving their local area
and equality of access for all

£850k

investment in modernising ICT
infrastructure including improving to web-based
services for Chorley residents

£500k investment in Astley Hall and the

Agenda Page 19

The council’s investments reinforced the
council’s direction of travel with an emphasis
on housing, delivering better services for
residents across the borough and a more
commercial approach to support the longerterm sustainability of council services. The
strategy successfully progressed large highprofile projects through to the final stages of
delivery or completion, shaping the future of
Chorley to meet the needs of residents of all
ages both now and in future.

surrounding park, as well as the improvements
to Hallgate car park. The Astley 2020 project will
renovate Astley Hall, as well as the parks
events infrastructure and footpath lighting.

A strong local economy

Walk

Enhanced car parking in the town centre -

£2m
The completion of the Digital Office Park, a
new prestigious development that will
provide 5,000 m² of Council owned bespoke
digital office and start up - £8.1m

Agenda Item 4

The completion of the Market
extension project - £15.3m

Clean safe and healthy communities

The completion of Primrose Gardens retirement
living, the council’s £10m extra care facility
Continued delivery of c. £800k per year of
home adaptations to enable Chorley residents
to continue independent living

£1m investment in the council’s play and open
spaces
purpose-built facility for the borough’s young
people aged 8 to 19, and up to 25 for those with
disabilities.

Agenda Page 20

£4m for the Chorley Youth Zone offering a

An ambitious council that does more to meet
the needs of residents and the local area

The council continues to deliver bus services
previously provided by LCC. It is the councils
ambition invest over £100k per annum to
operate and improve services from the Chorley
Bus Interchange.

Agenda Item 4

Chorley Council is facilitating the £2.2m
Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) investment in the
redevelopment of Bank Hall, Bretherton. The
proposals will completely restore the building’s
external appearance for Chorley residents to
enjoy.

The council has successfully delivered major large developments that will radically shape the future for Chorley. Future investment will build
on this work to drive forward ambitions for economic growth and ensure that Chorley is an even more attractive place to live, work and invest.
The council will also continue to work hard to deliver sustainable public services through transforming the organisation, taking a more

Future capital investment:
Westway Playing Fields – £2.7m to bring
forward a top of the range sports complex
Improvements to Union Street Offices – £1m
to deliver a better experience to residents that
supports the Digital Strategy
Improvements to Astley Hall and Park –
£1.6m to ensure a safe and secure local asset
that offers a high quality, sustainable visitor
attraction for future years

Bringing forward large sites for development
– housing and industrial units at Shady and Alker
Lane
Delivering a new masterplan for Tatton
Recreation Ground and the surrounding area
Large scale improvements to local leisure
facilities as part of the renewal of the leisure
management contract

Agenda Item 4

Whittle Health Hub – ensuring access to high
quality health facilities for residents from across
the borough

Agenda Page 21

Future investment

commercial approach and working closely with partners to integrate services.

Agenda Page 22

Agenda Item 4

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

Despite the budget savings identified in this report, as outlined above there remain large forecast
budget deficits of £1.206m in 2021/22 and £2.093m in 2022/23. To achieve a sufficient reduction in
net expenditure the Council’s strategy will be:

1. To realise savings through the procurement of its contracts
2. To identify the efficiencies through investment in infrastructure and through
exploring alternative delivery models that will enable the Council to balance the
budget whilst seeking to minimise the impact on front line service users
3. To make the Council more financially self-sufficient with specific emphasis on
creating investment that generates income.
Table 3 – Chorley Borough Council Transformation Programme
2020/21
£m
Adjusted Budget Deficit/(Available Resources)

(0.100)

2021/22
£m

2022/23
£m

1.206

2.093

-

(0.446)

(0.446)

Investment Sites

-

(0.200)

(0.200)

Parking Income

-

-

(0.200)

(0.200)

(0.400)

(0.660)

(1.347)

Contract Savings
Leisure Centre Management (expires October 2020)
Income Generation

Total Income Generation

(0.100)

Efficiency Savings
Efficiency Savings

-

Additional Investment
Operate Chorley Bus Station

0.100

0.100

0.100

Final Budget Deficit/(Available Resources)

0.000

0.000

0.000

Agenda Page 23

Agenda Item 4

TRANSFORMATION STRATEGY
Realising Savings through the Procurement of Contracts
29.

During the MTFS period the council will undertake procurement exercises on its contracts that
are coming to the end of the contract agreement periods. The ambition for the council is that
through these procurement exercises it will transform its delivery of key services whilst
generating cost savings and continuing to provide excellent service delivery. The council’s
current leisure management contract will expire in October 2020. The council encourages an
innovative approach to service delivery and it is the council’s ambition, through investment in
its leisure centres, that it will achieve a revenue neutral leisure management contract with
enhanced services to Chorley residents.

Income Generation
Investment Sites
30.

The council owns several sites that are being developed to bring forward the expansion of
employment, housing and health services within the borough. These include:
•
•
•
•
•

31.

Land at Alker Lane
Land at Shady Lane
Land at Cowling Farm
The site for a new Health Hub on Preston Road
The redevelopment of Tatton Recreation Ground including the disused bus depot

These sites are at different stages of advancement but are forecast to generate additional net
income for the council of £200k by 2021/22.

Council Tax and Parking Charges
32.

The council’s ambition to borrow and invest in income generating assets has resulted in there
being no requirement to burden council taxpayers with additional council tax increase from
Chorley Council in 2020/21. The council will continue to make itself more financially selfsustainable and therefore it proposes there will be no further council tax increases in 2021/22
and 2022/23. However, the uncertainty in Government policy relating to how much Chorley
Council will retain in locally generated business rates, means that future increases in council
tax must be considered every year as part of the broader strategy in dealing with the budget
deficit.

33.

The council’s parking charges were reduced in 2016/17 as part of the updated parking
strategy. Future increases in parking charges will be considered by the council if they are
deemed necessary to meet the budget deficit. However, new charges would only be introduced
as part of a renewed parking strategy and only if changes to parking tariffs would not be
detrimental to the already successful improvements to the town centre shopping and nighttime economy.

Efficiency Savings
34.

The transformation strategy covers many aspects of change both within the council and in
partnership with other organisations. At this stage the main strands of the strategy that could
generate savings are outlined further below.

Agenda Page 24
35.

Agenda Item 4

The Digital Strategy was approved by Executive Cabinet in June 2017. The strategy
incorporates 32 separate projects that seek to increases digital take up and inclusion, promote
smarter working and develop positive work cultures.
•

The Digital Strategy will develop and implement the ‘WorkSmart’ programme. This will
facilitate a shared culture of smarter working, maximising the use of technology and digital
information. Cost savings are expected through process/productivity improvements and
consolidation of office space.

•

Efficiencies are also expected through the further increase in digital take up of council
services, enabling customers to access council services online when and wherever they
like, while also reducing the demand on more expensive channels such as face to face and
over the phone

36.

The Streetscene Modernisation Strategy was approved by Executive Cabinet in January
2017. The Streetscene service aims to introduce several change themes designed to
challenge current working practices and modernise and introduce improvements to deliver high
quality services in a co-ordinated way.

37.

Developing these strategies requires investment by the council in its infrastructure. Through
the WorkSmart programme the council’s ambition is to consolidate its portfolio of offices to
reduce costs and improve efficiency across its services. To do this, the council has set aside
£1.3m in the capital programme to modernise its offices.

38.

There are a range of benefits that will be achieved from this work including improving the
customer facing areas to improve residents’ customer experience when visiting the Union
Street offices. This will include and encourage the use of self-service terminals and link to one
of the digital strategy projects to refresh the council’s website, however it will also continue to
include a one stop shop for customers who still want to speak to someone face to face. The
changes will lead to a better use of space and therefore create additional capacity in the civic
offices to enable all office based staff at Bengal Street to move to the Union St building, which
will lead to operational savings from rationalising office based staff from across three to two
buildings. Improvements in the facilities in the town hall will enhance the commercial offer of
the Lancastrian as well as providing additional facilities such as meeting rooms and break out
areas.

39.

As outlined in this report the council has expanded its shared services with South Ribble
Borough Council. The expected efficiency savings through the first phase of shared services
is included in the draft budget. From here both councils will develop further shared strategies
that will deliver improved services for both councils whilst also delivering efficiency savings.

Additional Revenue Investment
40.

Through the effective management of the budget Chorley Council is able to invest in additional
projects that deliver its Corporate Priorities. The opportunity has arisen to takeover the
management of the Chorley Bus Station from LCC. Chorley Council has a strong track record
of delivering bus services more efficiently and effectively than were previously managed by
LCC. Chorley Council therefore welcomes the opportunity to operate the bus station and
improve the services for residents. It is forecast to cost £100k per annum with the expectation
that costs will be better managed by Chorley Council as the station is incorporated into the
council’s master plan for the town centre as a whole.

41.

Chorley Council declared a Climate Emergency at Full Council on 19 November 2019. The
2020/21 budget includes resources to fund a climate change officer and £50k of revenue
reserves to help develop local climate change initiatives. This will only be the council’s starting
point; the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group will review and recommend further corporate
approaches to Full Council.

Agenda Page 25

Agenda Item 4

RESERVES
42.

Over the past six years the council has made ambitious investments to help enable the delivery
of a balanced budget. However, the council has also been ensured a prudent and affordable
approach to delivering the medium-term financial strategies. The council has set aside and
increased the balances to several reserves that can be utilised if unforeseen events have a
negative impact on council’s finances. The expected balances of these reserved is given in
table 4 below.

Table 4: Forecast Balances - assuming the balances are not utilised over 3 years
2020/21
£m
General Fund Reserve

2021/22
£m

2022/23
£m

4.000

4.000

4.000

Market Walk Income Equalisation Reserve

0.500

0.550

0.600

Logistics House Income Equalisation Reserve

0.450

0.450

0.450

Business Rates Retention Reserve

0.960

0.960

0.960

Total Reserves - Income

1.910

1.960

2.010

Market Walk Asset Maintenance

0.150

0.200

0.250

Primrose Gardens Asset Maintenance

0.030

0.060

0.090

General Asset Maintenance

0.150

0.150

0.150

Total Reserves – Asset Maintenance

0.330

0.410

0.490

Support for Local Businesses & Corporate Priorities

0.300

0.300

0.300

Change Management Reserve

0.300

0.300

0.300

Total Reserves – Other

0.600

0.600

0.600

Reserves - Income

Reserves – Asset Maintenance

Reserves - Other

43.

The total forecast level of reserves is expected to be £7.6m in 2020/21 with £6.8m of these
reserves identified in table 4. These reserves are necessary to mitigate the financial impact of
the uncertainty the council faces such as uncertainty regarding the national and local economy
and uncertain future funding levels.

44.

A large risk associated with business rates income relates to two applications for mandatory
charitable relief received from Lancashire Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. If
successful, the application would have been backdated to 2010 and therefore have a
significant impact on the Council’s revenue budget. A headline figure was a potential £2m
impact on the Council’s general fund and a further c£200k reduction in ongoing retained
business rates. However, the High Court has rejected the case brought by NHS hospital trusts
deeming them not established for charitable purposes.

Agenda Item 4

Agenda Page 26
CAPITAL PROGRAMME
45.

This report has dealt with the Council’s revenue budget. Implicit in the investment programme
set out above, however, are financial implications for the capital programme. The latest three
year Capital Programme can be found in the Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring Report
2019/20 Report 2 approved at November Executive Cabinet 2019. Table 5 below outlines the
proposed changes to the capital programme.
Table 5: Changes to Capital Programme
2020/21
£m
0.400

Project
Works to Existing Markets
Chapel St and Surrounding Public Realm

2.500

Purchase of Affordable Housing

1.500

Chorley Borough Service Centres

0.500

Town Centre Public Realm
TOTAL

4.900

2021/22
£m

2022/23
£m

2.000

2.000

2.000

2.000

46.

Chorley Council is incredibly proud of its Famous Markets that date back to 1498. The council
will continue to support its traditional indoor and outdoor markets and will therefore invest
£400k in 2020/21 in new market canopies and a refurbishment of the covered market.

47.

There council will provide targeted investment of up to £2.5m to improve the environmental
quality, built environment and tenant mix within Chapel Street and the immediate area. This
could result in the council purchasing and re-letting units.

48.

The council’s Housing Strategy outlined the council’s commitment to improve the quality of
housing, to meet the changing needs of our residents and to rebalance the housing market.
The council manages a wide portfolio of housing including sheltered accommodation,
affordable housing and extra care. To build on this success the council will invest further in
affordable housing setting aside £1.5m for the purchase, refurbishment and rental of
affordable housing in the borough.

49.

The council has supported all of its Local Service Centres in recent years through grant
schemes to local businesses. The council will continue borough-wide investment through
targeted capital projects in local service centres and will set aside £500k to plan, prioritise and
deliver these projects.

50.

Chorley Council has successfully delivered over £15m in delivering the initial stages of its
Town Centre Masterplan including works Fazarkerly, Market St South and Market Walk. The
council will continue its commitment to deliver the masterplan and will set aside £4m in the
coming three-year period to deliver improvements for its residents.

51.

The council’s capital programme is constructed based upon several objectives including the
requirement to be affordable and prudent. To do this the council will ensure that whenever
possible the impact of additional investment on revenue budgets will be minimised. The council
has a number of sources of funding it can use to invest in the borough including, CIL, s106,
grant funding and capital receipts. Where appropriate the council will also generate future
revenue income streams through capital investment to exceed the repayment of borrowing.

Agenda Page 27

Agenda Item 4

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT
Risk
52.

Some of figures outlined in the report are estimates and based on assumptions that are likely
to change. These include external risks such as changes to Government funding
arrangements, changes to interest rates and national and local economic changes. In addition,
the council faces internal risks such as void rates in its income generating assets and the risks
of delivering transformational change such as the expansion of shared services.

53.

The risks are dealt with through managing prudent levels of reserves, continually monitoring
government announcements, monitoring current and future economic projections and by
making prudent budget assumptions.

54.

This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:

Finance
Human Resources

✓

Legal

✓

No significant implications in this area

Customer Services
Equality and Diversity
Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
Policy and Communications

✓
✓

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER
55.

The financial implications of the above report are all contained in the text above but to clarify
all proposals are funded and can be accommodated within the 2020/21 budget. It should be
noted that the report does contain a number of assumptions on some future budget elements
and also what the final out-turn position will be for 2019/20. Should any of these change due
to unforeseen circumstances arising before 31st March 2020, this will be reviewed and
reported

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER
56.

The budget proposals are in accordance with the requirements of legislation

GARY HALL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND FINANCE OFFICER
There are no background papers to this report.
Report Author

Ext

Date

James Thomson

5025

01/01/20

Doc ID

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Agenda Page 29

APPENDIX 1

Cumulative Budget Deficit & Budget Strategy 2020/21 to 2022/23

CASH BASE BUDGET REQUIREMENT

2019/20
ESTIMATE

2020/21
ESTIMATE

2021/22
ESTIMATE

2022/23
ESTIMATE

£'000

£

£

£

14,251

13,515

12,525

12,442

295
27
126
(17)
76
25

229
201
(526)
(30)
116
(1)

201
33
17
12
136
7

210
31
18
3
149
6

Staffing funded by CIL Admin
Transfer to Net Financing
Increments
Volume Expenditure
Volume Income
Market Walk Extension
Retirement Village
Digital Office Park
Logistics House
Extending Shared Services
Housing Company
Senior Management Restructure
Review of Fees & Charges
Base Budget Review Savings
Review of Net Financing - Capital Investment (Future Years)
Review of Contracts
Transformation – Efficiency Savings Achieved
Review of Investment Items & Grants
Transformation – Efficiency Savings Target
Transformation - Income Generation (MW Extension)
LCC Transition Fund

30
(75)
47
257
98
0
121
63
0
0
65
0
(125)
(20)
(200)
(1,100)
(115)
(104)
(85)
(125)
0

0
0
46
30
87
(125)
(296)
(160)
(450)
(115)
(65)
30
(7)
0
0
0
0
0
85
0
(40)

0
0
26
(115)
83
(30)
(16)
(150)
0
(86)
0
0
0
0
(200)
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
10
136
(6)
0
(7)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

DIRECTORATE CASH BUDGETS

13,515

12,525

12,442

12,994

(150)

(150)

(150)

(150)

13,365

12,375

12,292

12,844

570
741
(100)

655
655
(100)

668
642
(100)

668
642
(100)

1,210

1,210

1,210

1,210

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

14,575

13,585

13,503

14,054

Financed By:
Council Tax - Borough
Parish Precepts
Council Tax Parishes
Revenue Support Grant
Retained Business Rates
Business Rates Pooling
Business Rates Pooling - Lancashire Pilot Scheme
Government Section 31 Grants
Business Rates Retention Reserve
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - Business Rates
New Homes Bonus
New Burdens Grants
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - Council Tax
Transfers to/(from) Earmarked Reserves
Create Logistics House Income Reserve
Commercialisation of Council Owned Assets
Support for Local Businesses & Corporate Priorities
Transfer to/(from) General Balances

(7,128)
686
(686)
0
(3,562)
0
213
(2,144)
237
234
(2,790)
(58)
(70)
(294)
0
485
300
0

(7,186)
686
(686)
0
(3,314)
0
0
(1,424)
261
61
(2,346)
(20)
(88)
(79)
450
0
0
0

(7,294)
686
(686)
0
(3,314)
800
0
(1,424)
0
0
(1,125)
0
0
60
0
0
0
0

(7,403)
686
(686)
0
(3,314)
800
0
(1,424)
0
0
(550)
0
0
(71)
0
0
0
0

(14,575)

(13,685)

(12,296)

(11,962)

0

(100)

1,206

2,093

Leisure Centre Management - Contract savings
Investment Sites - Income Generation
Parking Income
Efficiency Savings
Operate Chorley Bus Station

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
100

(446)
(200)
0
(660)
100

(446)
(200)
(200)
(1,347)
100

Forecast Medium Term Budget Gap

0

0

0

0

Cash Movements:
Inflation

Pay
Pensions
Pensions Rate Adj.
Non-Pay
Contractual
Income

Contingency:
- Management of the Establishment

Directorate & Corporate Budgets
Net Financing
- Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP - capital financing)
- Interest
- Temporary Savings on Borowing
sub total

TOTAL FINANCING
CUMULATIVE GROSS BUDGET POSITION

Transformation Programme

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 31

Agenda Item 5

Report of

Meeting

Date

Chief Finance Officer

Executive Cabinet

16 January 2020

REVIEW OF FEES & CHARGES
PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.

To amend some of the discretionary fees and charges the council currently makes to bring
the income in line with the cost of delivering these services. In doing so to revise the
income budgets for 2020/21 onwards.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.

That the proposed 2% increase in fees and charges outlined in table 2 of this report be
approved and it be further noted that the proposals will form part of the final budget papers
to be presented to Full Council in February 2020.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT
3.

The council’s fees and charges policy has been created to ensure fees are reviewed
frequently and consistently. Finance lead on the review every year alongside service
managers and directors. A review of fees and charges is submitted annually to January
Executive Cabinet.

4.

The 2020/21 review of fees and charges proposes a 2% inflationary increase in a number of
discretionary fees & charges. This will ensure the council better meets the cost of providing
these services. This has the effect of reducing or eliminating the council taxpayer’s subsidy
to these services so instead council tax can fund other priority service areas.

Confidential report
Please bold as appropriate

Yes

No

Key Decision?
Please bold as appropriate

Yes

No

Reason
Please bold as appropriate

1, a change in service
provision that impacts upon
the service revenue budget by
£100,000 or more
3, a new or unprogrammed
capital scheme of £100,000 or
more

2, a contract worth £100,000
or more
4, Significant impact in
environmental,
social
or
physical terms in two or more
wards

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)
5.
The council should endeavour, when it is legal and feasible to do so, to charge users to
meet the full cost of providing services.

Agenda Page 32

Agenda Item 5

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
6.
Without a regular review of fees and charges, new opportunities to introduce new services
and charges may be missed. In addition, without increasing charges the cost of delivering
services may not be recovered in full.
CORPORATE PRIORITIES
7.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy homes and
communities

A strong local economy
An ambitious council that does more
to meet the needs of residents and
the local area



BACKGROUND
8.
The Council’s constitution outlines that it is the responsibility of each chief officer to agree
its departmental charging policy in conjunction with the chief finance officer. It also
stipulates that fees and charges should be reviewed annually.
9.

It is important that decisions are made consistently and adhere to the principles which are
laid out in the fees and charges policy.

REVIEW OF FEES & CHARGES 2020/21
10.

The 2019/20 review of Fees and Charges introduced a new fees & charges policy for the
Council whereby charges are to be reviewed annually and where possible charges
increased if there exists a gap between the cost of delivering the service and the income
collected.

11.

The 2019/20 review adjusted the fees and charges for Bereavement Services, Regulatory
Services and Cotswold House. Budgets were also adjusted to reflect anticipated take-up of
services for Bulky Waste Collection and Community Centres.

Agenda Page 33
12.

Agenda Item 5

It is proposed the following charges are not adjusted for 2020/21:

Reason for Exclusion

Expected
Review

Car Parking – town
centre

Fees to be maintained at current levels due to
disruption from major works in the town centre.

20/21

Markets

Fees to be maintained at current levels due to
disruption from major works in the town centre.

20/21

PCN

Penalty Charge Notices are set nationally.

N/A

Planning

Planning fees are set nationally.

N/A

Building Control

Fees, in agreement with South Ribble Borough and
Preston City Councils, have been set in August 2017
with an average increase of 6%.

20/21

Garden Waste
Subscription

Charges will be reviewed after the implementation of
the new contract when actual costs of delivering the
service are better understood.

20/21

Land Charges

The Infrastructure Act 2015 provides for the transfer of
responsibility for Local Land Charges from local
authorities to Land Registry. There has been no update
as to when this transfer will be completed.

20/21

Summons Charges

Current charges for summons and liability orders are in
line with the cost of delivering the service and should
therefore not be increased.

20/21

Fee

13.

The review of fees and charges for 2020/21 has identified budget changes required as
shown in table 1 below:

Table 1: Summary of the Proposed Changes to Income Budgets

2020/21
Service

Charnock Richard
Crematorium

2020/21
Original
Income
Budget
£

Proposed
Budget
Alignment
(1)
£

Revised
Budget
2020/21
(1) + (2)
£

Cost of
Service
£

(16,000)

(25,000)

5,000

(20,000)

(5,000)

5,000

0

Community Centres

(75,050)

(6,760)

(81,810)

Regulatory Services
-Licence Fees

(66,300)

30,000

(36,300)

(75,000)

(25,000)

(100,000)

(83,330)

1,760

(81,570)

(335,680)

0

(335,680)

Astley Hall

Disabled Facilities
Grant Admin. Fee
Other minor
adjustments
TOTAL

Column (1) – adjustment to budgets to reflect forecast income levels

Budget to be increased in line with anticipated receipts for
2020/21.
Budget revised to bring in line with actual income received
N/A
for 2018/19 and forecast income for 2019/20.
No income anticipated in 2020/21 from wedding fees and
N/A
schools admissions due to major refurbishment works.
Budgets to be increased to reflect expected take-up of
245,000 service in 2020/21. No proposed changes to charges in
20/21.
Unable to implement new licensing policy for special
N/A
treatments due to lack of necessary national legislative
framework.
Budget revised to bring in line with actual admin fees
N/A
received for 2018/19 and forecasts for 2019/20.
Various minor budget adjustments to bring in line with
N/A
actual received for 2018/19 and forecasts for 2019/20.
N/A

Agenda Item 5

(10,000)

Agenda Page 34

(6,000)

Street Naming &
Numbering

Proposal
(more details in appendix 1)

Inflationary Increases to Fees & Charges
14.

The services listed in table 2 below have been suggested for potential inflationary increases in charges for 2020/21. The table shows the
anticipated additional income that would be generated for each % level of increase. CPI is forecast at 2% in 2020/21.

Table 2: Impact of Inflationary Increases in Fees & Charges
Impact of Inflationary Increase in Charges
1%
£

2%
£

3%
£

4%
£

(30,000)

(300)

(600)

(900)

(1,200)

Lancastrian Room Hire

(16,000)

(160)

(320)

(480)

(640)

Bulky Waste Collection

(58,300)

(583)

(1,166)

(1,749)

(2,332)

Bereavement Services

(110,680)

(1,107)

(2,214)

(3,320)

(4,427)

Investment Portfolio - Rent Garages

(25,000)

(250)

(500)

(750)

(1,000)

Public Protection - Licence Fees

(36,300)

(363)

(726)

(1,089)

(1,452)

Community Centres - Room Hire

(81,810)

(818)

(1,636)

(2,454)

(3,272)

(358,090)

(3,581)

(7,162)

(10,743)

(14,324)

TOTAL

Agenda Item 5

Legal Services - Recovery of Costs

Agenda Page 35

2020/21
Income
Budget
£

Service

Agenda Page 36

Agenda Item 5

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT
Risk
15. There is a low risk that use of council services would be reduced due to this inflationary
increase in fees and charges
16.

This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:


Finance
Human Resources
Legal
No significant implications in this
area

Customer Services
Equality and Diversity
Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
Policy and Communications

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER
17.

Any approved changes to fees and charges will require the council’s income budgets to be
updated. This will be completed as part of the budget setting process for 2020/21 ready for
the final approval of the budget at Special Council on 25 February 2020.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER
18.

No comment

GARY HALL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

Report Author

Ext

Date

James Thomson

5025

03/01/2020

Agenda Page 37

Agenda Item 6

Report of

Meeting

Date

Director (Commercial Services)
(Introduced by the Executive
Member (Resources))

Executive Cabinet

16/1/2020

STRAWBERRY FIELDS DIGITAL OFFICE HUB - GRANT OF
LEASES
PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.

To seek authority for the grant of leases for offices at the Strawberry Fields Digital Office
Hub

RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.

That the Executive Member for Resources have delegated authority to approve the terms
for all leases at the Strawberry Fields Digital Office Hub where the proposed terms are in
accordance with commercial rates and the financial model, and to authorise the Director of
Governance to complete leases on the approved terms.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT
3.

The Strawberry Fields Digital Hub is a brand new, state of the art, hi-tech business centre
for digital and creative businesses, providing collaborative space and bespoke office suites,
from new start-ups to growing SMEs.

4.

A range of office environments has been created to include hot-desking, micro pods and
offices for companies seeking flexibility and growth to larger office suites available on
conventional lease terms.

5.

There will be access to training and meeting rooms, presentation facilities, hi-speed
broadband, cloud storage and secure wi-fi plus on-site business support with links to
academia.

6.

These options will allow start-ups and SMEs to work alongside each other in an innovative,
supportive and vibrant environment.

7.

Business support will be provided by on-site Digital Business and University Advisors, with
the latter providing connectivity to academia.

8.

Immediate occupancy and flexible terms will be available to allow for future growth and
expansion within Strawberry Fields.

9.

This report seeks authority for the terms agreed for the grant of all Leases at the Digital
Office Hub to be delegated to the Executive Member for Resources

Agenda Page 38

Agenda Item 6

Confidential report
Please bold as appropriate

Yes

No

Key Decision?
Please bold as appropriate

Yes

No

Reason
Please bold as appropriate

1, a change in service
provision that impacts upon
the service revenue budget by
£100,000 or more
3, a new or unprogrammed
capital scheme of £100,000 or
more

2, a contract worth £100,000
or more
4, Significant impact in
environmental,
social
or
physical terms in two or more
wards

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)
10. To enable terms provisionally agreed with tenants to be approved without the need to wait for
a scheduled cabinet meeting which may lead to delay in the processing of applications where
the proposed terms meet local market commercial rates and comply with the Council
approved financial model for the facility.
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
11. To report each transaction for cabinet approval will lead to delay in the processing of
applications
CORPORATE PRIORITIES
12.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy homes and
communities

A strong local economy

X

An ambitious council that does more
to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

X

BACKGROUND
13.

The construction of the Digital Office Hub has now been completed

14.

Offices are now being marketed with a view to terms being agreed with prospective tenants

15.

In order to process applications for Leases quickly, approval is now sought to report each
application for approval under Executive Member Approval

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT
16.

To report each individual transaction over £100,000 (i.e. Key Decision) to scheduled
Cabinet Meetings may lead to delays in completing Leases which may deter prospective
tenants.

17.

This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:

Agenda Page 39

Finance
Human Resources
Legal

X
X

No significant implications in this
area

Agenda Item 6

Customer Services
Equality and Diversity
Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
Policy and Communications

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER
18.

All potential tenant’s financial standing will be assessed to ensure the risk of non-payment
is minimised. The MTFS will be updated as new agreements are signed and new tenants
occupy Strawberry Fields. All agreements will be checked against previous assumptions
and previously agreed rates. Promoting the increased occupancy of Strawberry Fields will
improve the council’s return on its investment as well as reducing its business rates liability
on vacant space.

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER
19.

The proposed delegation enables matters to be progressed more quickly. Transparency in
decision making will be maintained as such decisions will be EMD’s and published
appropriately. The constitution allows for Executive Members to make key decisions
however, a specific delegation in this instance provides for greater transparency.

Mark Lester
DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES

Report Author

Ext

Date

Catherine Jagger

5724

7/1/20

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 41

Agenda Item 7

Report of

Meeting

Date

Director (Early Intervention and
Support)
(Introduced by the Executive
Member (Early Intervention and
Support))

Executive Cabinet

16th January 2020

COMMUNITY RESILIENCE
PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.

To present the Council’s Community Resilience Framework as the guidance tool to be used
across the council, and with other key public service partners, to inform how we approach
the way we engage and work with communities to increase resilience and deliver better
outcomes for communities and residents.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.

To approve the framework (Appendix 1) and develop a project mandate for the
implementation of the framework as a 2020/2021 Corporate Strategy project.

3.

To review and update the framework annually so that it remains current and takes
advantage of developments and changes that influence its delivery.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT
4.

By enabling an increase in resilience communities are in a stronger position to support
themselves independently and have the potential for better health and wellbeing outcomes,
as well as reducing demand for public services over the long term.

5.

The achievement of resilient communities, amongst many other factors, requires a change in
relationships between individuals, communities and public services.

6.

The community resilience framework sets out the approach that will be taken to achieve that
change.

Confidential report
Please bold as appropriate

Yes

No

Key Decision?
Please bold as appropriate

Yes

No

Reason
Please bold as appropriate

1, a change in service
provision that impacts upon
the service revenue budget by
£100,000 or more
3, a new or unprogrammed
capital scheme of £100,000 or

2, a contract worth £100,000
or more
4, Significant
environmental,

impact
social

in
or

Agenda Page 42
more

Agenda Item 7
physical terms in two or more
wards

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(If the recommendations are accepted)
7.
To ensure our approach to working with our communities is consistent by using the
framework across the Council.
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
8.
To not implement a standardised framework would allow for inconsistency and disjointed
approaches which would not deliver sustainable and long-term resolves to public service
issues, health inequalities and prospects for residents.
CORPORATE PRIORITIES
9.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local X
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy homes and
communities

A strong local economy
An ambitious council that does more
to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

BACKGROUND
10.

The requirement for the framework is noted in the Council’s Transformation Strategy.

Purpose of Chorley Council
Chorley Council will provide leadership and services which protect vulnerable people and are
focussed on preventing the need for a reliance on more expensive service provision. The
council will:
 deliver high quality services that meet the needs of its residents and communities
 work with its partners to integrate services regardless of existing organisational
boundaries
 focus on preventative services, and services which support communities and
 individuals to remain independent and self-sufficient
 promote Chorley as a great place to live, work and do business.
11.

The Transformation Strategy also references the service design principles that should be
adopted to encourage community action and coproduction. These principles were:
 Everyone involved in delivering public services in Chorley should recognise people
as assets.
 Every service should provide opportunities for people to contribute and add value in
their lives and local area.
 Public services in Chorley should invest in building social networks and community
capability
 Services being reformed or redesigned should be designed with coproduction and
community action as a central aim

12.

Other work conducted to date to support the overall objectives of the framework has been
the 2018 review and restructure of the Health and Wellbeing Team (now Communities
Team). This review introduced a stronger community development structure with increased
capacity. The Community Development team have been using many of the approaches
within the framework during 2019 to test the model in generating focus projects and themes.
The summary of the key areas of focus this generated can be seen in Appendix 2.

Agenda Page 43

Agenda Item 7

13.

The Community Development Team with the assistance of other members of the wider team
now develop and oversee the delivery of an annual health and wellbeing communications
plan that’s fits with the overall objective of increasing resilience. This plan is informed by
localised health data and findings from community development work and guidance from
elected members.

14.

In addition, a Community Training programme was released in 2019 that enabled residents
to access unique and tailored training and awareness sessions that range from confidence
building and basic literacy skills through to setting up community activity and basic housing
repair skills.

15.

A few short case studies have been provided to demonstrate the types of outcomes that
have been generated through the early stages of utilising this framework by the Communities
Team. The examples are a selection only and not an exhaustive list of all the work
undertaken or in progress across Chorley. See Appendix 3.

16.

The review and refocus of the Employability service, now also part of the Communities team
supports the objectives of the framework. Work has already been completed to design and
implement a new support pathway which views the person’s need individually and allows for
an integrated approach that focusses on factors that influence issues with employability,
including mental health and other social impacts.

17.

The introduction of the new Social Prescribing service that sits within the Communities Team
adopts principles of the framework by utilising the knowledge of the Community Development
team to identify existing assets and support within communities that can guide and support
individuals to build their residence in a sustainable way.

18.

Also underway is the review of the process and focus of the Communities Teams Home
Adaptation service which is seeking to not only adjust to accommodate changes
implemented by Lancashire County Council but also develop more integrated and early
intervention approaches to the delivery of services, so that we can provide wider and more
holistic and preventative support to those who receive this service.

19.

The framework supports the following corporate priorities:
 Involving residents in improving their local area and equality of access for all
 Clean, safe and healthy homes and communities

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT
20.

There are no significant risks associated with the proposal to introduce this framework
approach.

21.

This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:
Finance
Human Resources
Legal
No significant implications in this
area

X

Customer Services
Equality and Diversity
Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
Policy and Communications

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

Agenda Page 44

22.

Agenda Item 7

The delivery of the new framework will be delivered within existing budgets

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER
23.

No comments.

Chris Sinnott
Director (Early Intervention and Support)
Report Author

Ext

Date

Angela Barrago

5816

23/12/2019

Agenda Page 45

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Page 46

Agenda Item 7

Overview
Community resilience is about working systematically to strengthen the capacity of a
community – enabling people to steer themselves towards the future that they choose. It
recognises that everyone has assets that can help them and their communities, but that
some need greater support because they face more barriers to achieving their goal.
Improving community resilience is important. It has the potential to improve the health,
wellbeing and outcomes of our residents, as well as reducing demand on public services
over the long term.
It requires a change in relationships between individuals, communities and public services.
This framework sets out the approach that will be taken to achieve that change.

Community resilience is built primarily through relationships, not just between members of
the community but also between organisations, specifically between the voluntary sector, the
local economy and the public sector.
The cause of low resilience is not an individual issue and although economic factors are
relevant, they are not the sole factor in ensuing resilience.
A focus on working across sectors to increase resilience is always needed but is particularly
important in times of public funding cuts and reduced services, change to the unemployment
landscape, rising inequalities and the cost of living. Building community resilience will
improve the wellbeing of our residents and provide the potential to reduce demand on costly
public services.
A framework will provide direction and set out the approach required to help us to achieve
better outcomes and raise resilience of individuals and communities.
The framework will be a key tool for the council and will guide the principles and approaches
used to understand and support communities across the borough.
We will work with our partners to adopt the same principles and approaches across all public
services working in the borough to improve social outcomes.
Links to Corporate Strategy and Public Service Reform Partnership
The community resilience framework will support the delivery of the council’s Corporate
Strategy. Specifically, it will support the following priorities:
 An ambitious council that does more to meet the needs of its residents and the local
area
 Involving residents in improving their local area and equality of access for all
 Clean, safe healthy homes and communities
It will also support the delivery of the Chorley Public Service Reform Board’s vision:
By 2020, we will have high quality public services which provide value for money and
the best outcomes for the residents of Chorley.
Objectives
Some of the broad over-arching objectives our work will seek to achieve are:
 Ensuring assets and resource is available to support communities adapt and mange
a gradual change

Agenda Page 47







Agenda Item 7

Encouraging activism and developing ways to increase the ‘voice’ of these
communities
Creating ways for communities to increase relationships in the community and
access the support of the wider community and other assets and resources that exist
Better use of community buildings to provide the support services needed in the
community
Ensuring those closest to issues are involved in future changes and decision making
and can be part of the solution not just recipients of top down support
Building trust and increasing the transfer of control and decision making
Break down stigmas, developing relationships between communities and public
sectors and providing the right conditions to support raising residents’ aspirations

Agenda Page 48
Issues effecting resilience

Agenda Item 7

There are broadly three levels that influence resilience within communities. The diagram
below illustrates the key factors that lead to strong resilience.

Structural
conditions

• Buoyant local economy and
income
• Spatial and built environment
• Feeling safe and low crime
• Effective public services

Social networks
and capital

• Regular interaction and social
contact
• Ability to engage and access
emotional and practical support
or help

Self

• Ability to manage and regulate
own help
• Ability to access and attain a
good education
• Individual disposition

How do you achieve resilience?


Structural
conditions





Social
networks
and capital









Self





A positive ﬂow of money and resources, with long-term investment into the local
area and public and private sector spending retained locally.
Network of diverse, responsible businesses and enterprises, committed to place,
growing the local economy and providing good quality employment opportunities.
Good access to high quality physical environments, such as accessible public
spaces that encourage community-led involvement, activity and development
opportunities in the local area
Crime levels are low, individuals are less likely to become vulnerable to the impacts
of crime
Spatial segregation is overcome, ensuring that communities are not physically
disconnected to other places
Strong and positive social networks
Reduced loneliness and isolation
Sense of community and positive relationships, people helping each other within
communities and sharing resources
Individual and collective efforts to improve the environments in which they live
Maintaining good health and being able to manage health conditions, and to sustain
employment, relationships and support networks through ill health
Able to access appropriate and adequate education, and be supported when in
education
Awareness of public services, how to access and navigate and influence their own
outcomes
Ability to afford and use developing technology to increase connectivity and
knowledge
Ability to prepare for, respond to and recover from significant life changes and
emotional trauma and deal with emergencies.
The confidence and ability to engage in reciprocity and gain purpose and value from
the experience

Principles

Agenda Page 49

Agenda Item 7

Evidence based – at all stages of our work we will ensure priorities and focus areas are
defined and tailored utilising evidence. This will consider the views, opinions and data we
can obtain from those impacted by or closest to the issue, national, local and reginal data
and the evidence that can be gained from other relevant inter-related aspects.
Codesigned / Coproduced - we will commit to viewing codesign and coproduction as
mainstream approaches and not a bolt on activity that supports only the delivery element of
a project, service or activity or when we feel we need additional resource. We no-longer
need to take the lead but will adopt to allow other to do so with our support. We will take
longer to conduct a review, redesign or introduce a new service so that we can allow
coproduction to take place and we will recognise that our processes, perceptions and
opinions will need to change to fully benefit from it.
Asset based – we will change our processes and approaches so that we take an assetbased view in all the work we do. We will start with what is good when we are working with
individuals, situations and crises so that we can extrapolate very early the positive elements,
assets, interests and skills that may be able to influence a quicker and more positive route
for engagement and providing support. When looking to fill a gap in services or respond to a
situation we will assess thoroughly what already exists both formally and informally and we
will help communities to assess and become more aware of the skills and assets that are
around them and how to use them to meet needs or improve situations.
Personalised and Holistic View – we will take a person-centred view which places greater
consideration and makes better use of what matters to individuals. We will use this to help
support, develop or improve a situation to achieve a more effective outcome. We will
consider what the individual values the most before our personal or professional opinion of
what we would value the most and we will use this better understanding of the person to also
support more asset-based conversations. We will take a holistic consideration of the
individual and the many aspects that may have influenced their situation and hold greater
respect for the challenges and situations they have been in over a focus on their behaviours.
Partnership based – we will not work in isolation. We will work across all public services,
including voluntary and community groups and private sector. We will encourage
communities to see the potential and capabilities to build their own voluntary support
network and become confident in accessing and partnering with others
Access to space, resource and support - Many communities in the past have benefited
from access to support, resources and infrastructure – spaces to meet, community
development and other support workers, and funds. We will continue to invest in this
support, building on the experience of the past, will allow people to make the most of the
assets, energy and ideas that they have.
Continual evaluation - we will periodically assess and review the areas that have been
identified to ensure this focus remains valid. Our model will always ensure that we can
extend targeted work to smaller geographical areas where there are ‘pockets’ of high need.
Likewise, we will assess and review the themes and areas that we focus on to ensure that
these continue to be relevant for Chorley in reducing impacts on local public services and
increasing resilience and health outcomes where they are low.

Agenda Page 50

Agenda Item 7

Our approach to supporting communities
We will implement a plan for each community identified as requiring increased support to
develop resilience and will use the methodology set out below. These methods can be used
and adapted by any other service internally or externally to align our approach both internally
and external with key partners and stakeholders.
Our approach to engagement
When considering or carrying out exploratory stages of any community engagement activity
we will:






take a participatory approach, be open-minded and use local perspectives to codesign supportive, positive engagement and we won’t assume we know what is
needed or wanted
be ethical, inclusive and avoid bias, aim to engage with a representative cross
section including minorities and those with accessibility needs
be transparent and accountable, manage information appropriately, monitoring,
evaluating and sharing information about activities and outcomes
work through existing channels, groups and networks with aligned active agencies to
gain traction and avoid the risk of duplication
acknowledge that different groups will need different levels of support and work in a
way that assess and acknowledges this (informing, engaging, empowering)

Agenda Page 51

Agenda Item 7

The steps we will take
When working with a community for the first time, we will aim to understand them in the
following ways. This will support the development of clear and coproduced plans to build
resilience.

Understand
the
background
Review and
evaluate

Understand
the people

Deliver the
plan

Understand
the services

Develop a
plan

Understand the background: we will understand the background and history of the
identified cohort or section of a community including factors such as the physical
environment, levels of industry, access to leisure and social activities, open spaces
and recent structural, environmental and other factors that have positively or
negatively affected the culture or cohesiveness that impacts on resilience levels.
Understand the people: how they function, their values and priorities, current skills
and capabilities, profile of the community, housing mix, employment levels, levels
and types of complex lives, deep rooted historical issues.
Understand services: what services are accessed and how, how do these services
work, what is not working in these services and what solutions do the community
have for how they can contribute to new ways to achieve better outcomes.
Develop the plan: a plan developed based upon the understanding gained.
Developed with the communities affected and with clear actions linked to identified
objectives.
Deliver the plan: the plans developed will be delivered, working with the
communities they are about. Public services will seek to take the lead only where
necessary, and to encourage individuals and communities to lead action.
Review and evaluate: we will evaluate work undertaken to assess its impact and to
inform future work.

Agenda Page 52

Agenda Item 7

We will do this through:













On the ground conversations and interviews using creative and exploratory
questioning techniques to capture honest and reflective picture of life for the
residents who make up the community we are working in or with.
Actively seeking out the views from those who are traditionally un-heard or
under-represented and ensuring these people are encourages and supported to be
part of future work.
Using approaches such as Action Research which involves professionals working
alongside communities to test out different ways of working, starting with assets and
building capacity and resilience through the research process.
Have a broader view of those who need to be consulted as a stakeholder
(everyone who is affected directly and indirectly) so that the potential to bring about a
more effective change is much greater
Development of trusted relationships in communities to bring forward cohorts
of people who can broadly represent the community and informally as well as
formally communicate, gather knowledge and opinion representative of the
community.
Seek out root causes and underlying needs so that we can support systematic
change and find ways to develop responses that can be activated at a very local level
yet bring about positive long-term change.
Identify how short term and long-term changes can both be used to achieve
meaningful change that is designed in a way that builds in sustainability
Consider the impact of considering other public services’ influence and work
with communities and residents and to align where possible
Capture data, findings and anecdotal evidence and record this so that this can
be used to inform the work to be done and evaluate in the future
Compare findings with national and local data and research so that this can be
considered alongside the views of those with lived experience
Challenge existing processes outside of our direct control and find ways to work
with other parties to demonstrate the impact of both simple and radical changes

Agenda Page 53

Agenda Item 7

Monitoring and evaluation of resilience
We will focus on two aspects of monitoring and evaluation:
1) Monitoring and evaluating projects designed to increase resilience
We will monitor the key milestones that we define through our resilience plans. This will
cover off the process of delivering projects and expected actions such as:
 Establishing the current state in the locality and desired outcomes
 Identify assets and vulnerabilities
 Benchmarking and gathering anecdotal evidence
 Prioritise possibilities, agree actions and build / link in to other processes or work
where relevant or beneficial
 Consider sustainability of changes
 Review, understanding impacts of early changes, results of prototyping and amend
actions accordingly
2) Monitoring and evaluating our asset-based approaches
Asset-based evaluation will always be more qualitative than quantitative, using words and
stories (anecdotal evidence) to appreciate impacts and provide evidence and it is used either
independently or alongside quantitative data.
The framework for our asset-based evaluation will consider:
1) Who is involved in the evaluation:
 The person – how has this helped me, my family, my friends
 The community – how are things different around here as a place to live and work
 Professionals – how has my involvement in this work had a positive outcome
 Programme leads – what are we learning and how do we best use that learning
 Funders – how can the impacts better inform funding decisions
 Policy makers – how can a better understanding of communities lead to more
effective policy making
2) The tools we will use, including the Logic model which is a simplistic plan that details
the situation and the key actions to be taken with high level outcomes broken down over
short, medium and long term.
3) Including individuals in the evaluation as well as the asset-based work itself using tools
available such as a Spectrum of Involvement and Purpose of Involvement.
4) Gathering evidence where people are - making use of where people are naturally
gathering to allow for unobtrusive and meaningful conversations.
5) Working to broad outcomes – asset-based work should allow outcomes to emerge rather
than be prescribed. It will defeat the objective if outcomes are over-prescribed from the
beginning.
6) It will sometime be unknown as to what data to collect therefore we will record what
changes we can see or hear from conversations and behaviour changes. There is a
need for greater analysis that data collection.
7) Testing what we hear – making sure we hear from the less obvious members of a
community and obtaining multiple opinion and embracing contradictions.

Agenda Page 54

Agenda Item 7

8) Asset based approaches do not mean we cannot state or refer to deficits or issues of
what is not right ‘on the ground’. A community needs to be able to state what it wants to
see change otherwise it won’t be possible to gauge if anything has changed.
Evidence gained from our asset-based approaches to monitoring and evaluation will also
support the review and development of this framework. Through this work, we aim to make
long-term improvements to overall wellbeing and reduce demand on public services. We
know that this will take time to change and will be difficult to monitor – but we will work to
develop an approach to evaluate change.

Skills and training
To develop this approach set out in this framework we will need to consider if there are new
skills and training requirements across public services in the borough. Training and
development will help to support changes to approaches and processes and to embed the
principles of the community resilience framework in all that we do.
For the council, the training will be focussed through the organisational development
strategy. The public service reform partnership will look to develop an approach across
public services.
Asset based approaches

to enable public services to be able to use this approach
training will be required to show examples of how this style can
provide better, earlier and more sustainable outcomes. An
asset-based approach looks not just at what is wrong, what is
lacking and how it can be solved by a third party but considers,
what is working, what are the positives in the negative situation
and how can these be used to create solutions.

Monitoring and evaluating of asset-based approaches and developing the knowledge and
skills of services and communities to be able to measure these
types of outcomes.
Person centred approach

taking an individualised view of each scenario, recognising that
what matters to individuals will dictate how they respond.
Appreciating that those with challenges has assets and
interests that can be more effective in helping to build
resilience than external intervention and formalised support.

Listening skills

to be able to understand and appreciate the impact of
information we are receiving and to enable an asset-based
approach we need to ensure we train staff in techniques that
will enable

Engagement skills

developing skills to support individuals and communities to
recognise their own assets and to gather a better
understanding of those communities.

Knowledge sharing

to be able to give the best advice at the best time how we
gather, and share knowledge is important. This applies to both
internal and external sharing whether through better interdepartmental relationship building and partnership working or
signposting and advice and how we gather, coordinate and
share this knowledge externally.

Agenda Page 55

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Page 56

Agenda Item 7

Identifying communities for focus
Public services need to target resources where it is most needed. Therefore, while the
principles set out above will apply to all the work the council undertakes, this section sets out
how work to build community resilience will be focused.
The council has used existing data and evidence to identify communities that need more
support to build their resilience. It starts from the basis of identifying communities that have a
higher concentration of people with lower resilience.
Signs of low resilience in individuals include:
 Inability to cope with even a low level of increased of stress
 Inability to react effectively to a challenge or negative change
 Irrational or irresponsible decision making and lifestyle choices
 Increased risk-taking behavior
 Higher likelihood for unemployment
 Increased risk of developing and increasing health conditions
 Loneliness and disconnection from positive social networks
Impact on communities when there are higher levels of individuals experiencing multiple
factors associated with low resilience include:
 Lower levels of community collaboration
 Lower levels of civic pride and engagement in organized activities
 Higher levels of crime and anti-social behavior
 Lower attainment levels in education
 Lower income
 Increased health conditions and long-term impacts on health
 Under representation of views and ability to influence
We know there are individuals who have lower levels of personal resilience living in
communities where there are signs of relatively good or high community level resilience, as
well as the other way around.
Often, approaches used to improve community resilience will automatically support an
increase in an individual’s resilience and vice-versa, the more resilient an individual is feeling
the more likely they will feel they are able to contribute and become involved in their local
community.
There are multiple indices and other types of evidence and data that help us to decide where
we may need to concentrate any efforts to do concentrated geographically across the
borough.

Our first plans to build community resilience
Based on the principles and methodology set out earlier in this framework, the council has
identified a series of communities that require greater support in the borough. These
communities have been identified based upon the data and intelligence available on the
indicators identified above.
Chorley (Inner) East
Clayton Brook
Chorley South West

Agenda Page 57

Agenda Item 7

We also know there are other geographical areas experiencing the same impacts but where
the volume of people affected is lower.
Coppull
Adlington
Astley
Thematic indicators
From further research we know that there are some specific themes that also have
significant impact on an individual’s level of resilience, such as:
-

Starting Well; a good start in life as a child
Ageing Well; planning and awareness of remaining well through ageing
Managing key life changes; bereavement, separation
Onset of challenging health conditions; deterioration of health, onset of long-term
conditions

These themes sit alongside our focus on employability and further developing a new
pathway to employment and a cross organisational approach to developing more social
inclusion opportunities and increasing voluntary capacity and opportunities.
The council’s community engagement team will lead work to develop action plans for each of
the communities and thematic indicators identified. These plans will be produced based on
the principles and methodology and will be available and monitored through the council’s
Project Management system.

Agenda Page 58

Agenda Item 7

Opportunities to use this approach across other Council
service areas:
Whilst this framework supports the overall approach to community development as a
response to increasing resilience, it will not be effective if the principles are carried out in
isolation.
There are opportunities to use these principles across other service areas, particularly
around the element of community involvement and codesigned services, such as:
Team

Potential areas

Finance

Participatory budgeting: engaging with communities to
provide opinions on budget options

Planning

Allowing greater collaboration, where statutory policy allows,
for communities to influence planning decisions and changes
to local policies

Development of systems
and IT

Redesigning with individuals and communities at the start of
the process rather than only testing or consulting at the end
of a design, for example in the redesign of the Council’s
website.

Development projects

Allowing for greater input from communities, particularly
those with additional needs on changes to the environment,
town center, infrastructure development and other
development projects



Health and Wellbeing




inform redesign and delivery of pathways and support to
increase employability prospects
work broadly across the borough to develop
Neighbourhood working
review how we deliver services and adaptation through
the Home Improvement Agency
improve the way that we use and develop community
centres, leisure centres and other Council community
assets.

The benefits:
 Communities can bring a different view and perspective that would not have been
considered otherwise
 Communities see the same problem in a different way adding a different dimension
to be considered
 Community involvement helps to deliver programmes which more accurately target
local needs.
 Projects are more acceptable to more of the local community.
 Programme outputs which have been designed with input from residents are likely
to last longer because communities feel ownership of them.
 The constructive involvement of communities helps to build local skills and supports
increased resilience.

Agenda Page 59

Agenda Item 7

Opportunities to use this approach across other partners
and public services:
To provide even greater impact this approach can be used by others such as agencies,
partners and other public services to gain better insight to the impacts their services have
and the opportunities to improve them with those who use them
Examples of services who could use these approaches could include;






Police and emergency response services
Health service providers and bodies
Social care service providers
Schools and Children and Families Services
Housing Associations

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 61

Community Resilience – Locality Plans 2019/2020

Priority

Rural Wards

Agenda Item 7

Collaborate with clinical services and
Parish Councils to develop and
implement strategies that focus on social
isolation
2. To develop awareness raising campaigns
around the health impacts of levels of
alcohol consumption
3. Further research on how living in rural
areas effects both personal and
community resilience

Links to framework

1.

Assess the impact of access to
infrastructure on health
5. Understanding of the employment
landscape in rural areas

Social networks and capital

Social networks and capital

4.

Chorley East

1. Develop stronger community level
communication
2. Increase capacity of local residents to
deliver activities, events and support for
families and young people
3. Increase understanding of mental health
and support

4. To understand levels of social isolation
within the community and develop/test
short term strategies

Clayton Brook

Astley and Buckshaw and Coppull
Adlington

Chorley Town/South West

Structural conditions

5. To assess at a locality level the gaps in
skills and employability provision
1. Assess and enhance the availability of
employment, social inclusion and
learning opportunities for residents of
Clayton Brook.
2. Improve accessibility to health services in
the area.
3. Working in partnership with the police
and residents to develop a more
effective reporting method
4. Understand and develop methods of
communication for different cohorts of
residents to increase participation levels
1. To develop a broad understanding of
how community stakeholders, attempt
to mitigate the societal factors that lead
to youth generated ASB and violence
1. To undertake a gap analysis to determine
what extra-curricular provision is
available for young people, which
encourages them to access and engage
more readily with their education
2. To facilitate local sports clubs,
community groups and health services to
develop sustainable community activities
that promote positive mental health and
wellbeing
3. To work with local schools, services and
local stakeholders to enable them to give
parents the tools they need to provide
regular and affordable healthy meals for
their families.
1. To engage residents in a Community
Action Group to tackle crime, anti-social
behaviour and make Chorley Town West
a nicer place to live
2. To increase family engagement and
develop relationships with services and
professional organisations
3. To tackle Social Isolation amongst
minority groups situated in the area,
working with the local schools

Social networks and capital

Social networks and capital

Structural conditions

Social networks and capital

Self
Social networks and capital

Self

Self

Social networks and capital

Community Resilience – Locality Plans 2019/2020

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Page 62
4. To reduce the demand on public services
by supporting residents within their
locality to access services and improve
their own health and wellbeing before a
service is required.
5. To understand residents needs for
employment and volunteering
opportunities

Self

Structural conditions

Agenda Page 63

Agenda Item 7

Case studies
A few short case studies have been provided to demonstrate the types of outcomes that have been
generated through the early stages of utilising this framework by the Communities Team. The
examples are a selection only and not an exhaustive list of all the work undertaken or in progress
across Chorley. More detailed background and impact information can be provided for these and
other case studies.

Buttermere Parent and Toddler Group
This group aims to bring families together, to give them an opportunity to socialise and increase their
confidence through play in a friendly, warm and safe environment. The group have been working hard
with residents in the local area to build up trusted relationships with each other and services. Several
residents have been identified as being vulnerable and in need of support and are able access help
through the group which is more informal and often safer approach to accessing help when needed.
Participants who attend also encourage residents who currently don’t access the session to seek
support from services due to their increased knowledge of the support available.
How this is different
Historically services would attempt to reach residents by holding their own sessions and try to
advertise them locally. Uptake would often be poor due to several factors including:
-

Lack of trust in services
Stigma of attending a session to get help
Ineffective communication channels – services not able to reach residents

This approach allowed the group to develop as a stand-alone group and decide which services they
wanted to attend when they were ready. Trust was established between members of the group and
services gradually. Residents can guide service providers in developing more effective ways to reach
those who need help. This changes the relationship between service-users and service providers to a
more co-designed / co-produced model and strengthens residents’ relationships with services.
This group is meeting the needs of the community in wider ways such as running their own holiday
clubs such as Fit and Fed which is developing their skills as well as using assets that exist in
communities.

Clayton Residents Group
Similarly, in Clayton a new group of residents have come forward to develop a group so that they can
start to influence change and create activities and opportunities for residents. The group have formed
a constituted group which took a significant amount of time to develop due to the roles and
requirements and the uncertainty this presented for those taking up positions within the group. An
early project they influenced was the delivery of activity sessions for local children in the community
centre to introduce them to the skills associated with sports such as boxing. Following this and with
the support of the Community Engagement Officer they arranged for the Children and Families Service
to run a positive parenting course, also from the community centre.

Agenda Page 64

Agenda Item 7

Other skill-based courses have been delivered which is helping the residents to volunteer and make
use of the café area within the community centre such as Basic Food Hygiene and Emergency First Aid.
This enabled the volunteers to hold sessions throughout the summer for families to come together
and in a similar way to the Buttermere Mums project, they decided which services they wanted to
invite to attend. The group have raised money for charity and as a result of improved local contacts,
relationships and trust, a service to support those affected by drugs and alcohol is operating a satellite
service from the community centre.
How this is different
It is likely that previously the length of time needed to establish the resident’s group would have been
classed as disengagement or reluctance and it may have been abandoned. An ability to spend time
understanding the fears and motivations of residents allowed us to provide intensive support for a
longer period to complete this phase. This built trust and demonstrated the commitment of the
council to support this group. Another similar common theme in this project is the residents desire to
decide which services they felt the community needed. As they are influencing the decision, they are
encouraging attendance and raising awareness of the support available which is generating higher
levels of attendance than previously seen when this type of service has been made available in the
past.
Unlike previous examples of community development work, we have not moved back from providing
support at the point a group has been established which although is successful in other circumstances,
is often the point at which issues arise within a group where this type of engagement in their
community is new and personally challenging.

Rural Areas – Health events
Through widespread and diverse conversations with residents across many of the rural areas mini
health events have been arranged to meet the needs of residents who want to find out about the
types of health services and advice available. These events are attended by people who are not
necessarily unwell but are maybe considering extra steps to remain independent and physically active.
These events act as a prevention approach and include information on home adaptations, physical
health and support for self-management of health conditions. The events are held locally and in village
halls and are relevant to all ages within a community.
How this is different
Health events may not have been prioritised in rural areas as statistically they may not be classed as
high need. Health events are also usually held in town or city centre locations and people living in rural
areas can miss out on vital advice due to the location. In addition, individual services find it hard to
reach residents in these areas to raise awareness of their service. Working with the resident to set the
event up helps to increase awareness of the event significantly through established informal and
formal networks and communication methods.

Agenda Page 65

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 71

Agenda Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 75

Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

